






 
 PROCLAMATION 

 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Congress and President of the United States have designated May 15th as 
National Police Officer Memorial Day, and the week of May 10th – May 16th, as National Police 
Week; and 
 
WHEREAS, members of the Leander Police Department play an essential role is safeguarding 
the rights and freedoms of our community; and  
 
WHEREAS, members of our Police Department recognize their duties to serve the community 
by safeguarding life, property, and by protecting them from disorder, the innocent from 
deception, and the weak against oppression; and 
 
WHEREAS, many law enforcement officers across the country have given their lives in the 
course of these duties; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, Mayor Christopher Fielder and the Leander City Council, call upon all 
citizens of our community to observe the week of May 10th – May 16th, 2015, as National Police 
week, and May 15th as National Police Officer Memorial Day in honor of those law enforcement 
officers who have made the ultimate sacrifice in service to their community. 
 
 

 

 “NATIONAL POLICE WEEK 2015” 
                      

 

                  

                                             Attest:   

__________________________________                              _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                                        Debbie Haile, City Secretary                                                                                                 



 
 
 

                                                                          MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 

201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ April 16, 2015 at 7:00 PM  
 

  
  
 
 

1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance 
Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Council Member Lynch delivered the invocation 
 

2. Roll Call 
All present 
   

3. Staff Comments  
Mayor Fielder recognized Janet Gallagher, Building Inspector and congratulated her on 
her retirement 
 

       4.   Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
             Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
 
            No citizens comments 
 

5. Recognition of Mattie Rowland for the “Women of Distinction” Award from HEB 
Sponsored by Mayor Fielder 
Gary Anderson explained the award to the council and introduced Mattie Rowland 
Mayor Fielder recognized Mattie Rowland for her achievement 
 

6. Recognition of Lowe's Leander by the Mayor's Committee on People with Disabilities 
Sponsored by Mayor Fielder 
 Council Member Lynch recognized Lowes for having an inclusive culture for people with disabilities 
 and presented them a Certificate of Recognition 
 

7. Dedication of Gabriel and Jayne Serna Fields at Bledsoe Park 
Sponsored by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette 
Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette explained and Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director recognized  
Jayne Serna and unveiled the plaque that will be displayed at the fields 

8.   Proclamation recognizing “National Crime Victims’ Rights Week 2015” 
      Sponsored by Police Chief Minton 
      Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette read the Proclamation and presented it to the Police Department 
 
 
 

    Mayor   – Christopher Fielder                  Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
    Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tem)                  Place 5 – Vacant 
    Place 2 – Kirsten Lynch                                 Place 6 – David Siebold  
    Place 3 – Vacant     City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                              

 



 
 
 
 

     
 

  9.   Approval of the minutes: April 2, 2015 
 
10.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #15-Z-003: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
       Composite Zoning Ordinance for the property located at 17680 Ronald W. Reagan Blvd., Leander,  
       Williamson County, Texas  
 
11.  Ordinance cancelling the special election for Place 5, unexpired term, affirming the Certification of  
       Unopposed Candidate for Place 5, and declaring candidate elected to office 
 
12.  Variance to Construction Noise Bylaw for Seretta Construction Texas, LLC to allow for Early Morning  
       Concrete Pours for the Abacus School Project, located at 1720 S. Bagdad Road 
 
13.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for The Fairways at Crystal  
       Falls, Section 2, Phase 2-6B 
 
14.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for The Fairways at Crystal  
       Falls, Section 2, Phase 2-7 
 
15.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Grand Mesa Section 8,  
       Phase 1 
 
16.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Travisso Phase 2, Section 
       1A 
 
17.  Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Travisso Phase 2, Section  
       1B 
 
18.  Award of Bid for Bank Depository Services to Frost Bank 
 
       Mayor Fielder pulled item # 12 from the consent agenda for discussion 
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette  to approve the consent agenda except item # 12.    
       Second by Council Member Siebold. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Lynch to approve item # 12 with the requested times and to  
        come back to council for future pours and to modify backup noise.  Second by Council  
        Member Siebold.  Motion passes, all voting “aye”. 
 

  
 

 
19.  Public Hearing on Subdivision Case # 15-CP-002: Consider the Horseshoe Cove Concept Plan for 
       5.06 acres, more or less, generally located 680 feet from the southwest corner of the intersection of  
       Horseshoe Drive and S. West Dr., on the south side of Horseshoe Drive, Leander, Williamson County,  
       Texas  Applicant: David Coombs on behalf of Akram Amani 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

 



 
 
 
       Action on Subdivision Case #15-CP-002: Horseshoe Cove Concept Plan, Leander, Williamson  
       County, Texas 
 
        Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
20.  Public Hearing on Comprehensive Plan Amendment Case # 15-CPA-001: requesting change to the  
       Transportation Plan proposing the relocation of San Gabriel Parkway generally located between  
       N. Bagdad Road/CR 279 and the future extension of Lakeline Blvd., Leander, Williamson County,  
       Texas  Applicant: Steven Crauford on behalf of Sixth Street Capital Investors, LP and Devine Land  
       Investments, LLC 
       The applicant has withdrawn their application 
 
21.  Public Hearing on Comprehensive Plan Amendment Case # 15-CPA-003: requesting change to the  
       Transportation Plan proposing the relocation of the Lakeline Blvd. and San Gabriel Pkwy. intersection,  
       Leander, Williamson County, Texas  Applicant: Danny Martin on behalf of J.L. Development, Inc. (John  
       Lloyd) 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
       Ercil Brashear 2995 Dawn Drive, Georgetown – representative for the adjoining property owner  
       spoke about the realignment 
 
       Action on Comprehensive Plan Amendment Case # 15-CPA-003: a change to the Transportation Plan 
       proposing the relocation of the Lakeline Blvd. and San Gabriel Pkwy. intersection, Leander,   
       Williamson County, Texas 
 
        Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette  to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
22.  Public Hearing on Comprehensive Plan Amendment Case # 15-CPA-002: requesting change to the  
       Community Center Node and a Neighborhood Center Node shown on the Future Land Use Plan to  
       remove portions of the Community Center Node located at the future intersection of the Lakeline Blvd.  
       and San Gabriel Pkwy and the Neighborhood Node located at the future intersection of Lakeline Blvd.  
       and CR 280 that are located within their subdivision boundaries, Leander, Willaimson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Danny Martin on behalf of J.L. Development, Inc. (John Lloyd)   
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
       Action on Comprehensive Plan Amendment Case # 15-CPA-002: a change to the Community Center 
       Node and a Neighborhood Center Node shown on the Future Land Use Plan to remove portions of the  
       Community Center Node located at the future intersection of the Lakeline Blvd. and San Gabriel Pkwy  
       and the Neighborhood Node located at the future intersection of Lakeline Blvd.and CR 280 that are  
       located within their subdivision boundaries, Leander, Willaimson County, Texas 
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to deny based on the Planning & Zoning  
       Commission recommendation.  Second by Council Member Abruzzese. Motion passes, all 
       voting “aye” 
 

         
 

 
     23.  Consider Interlocal Agreement regarding the Cedar Park-Leander Drought Contingency Project  
             Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 

         Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. 
         Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 



   
 
 
 
   24.  Consider approval of an amendment to the agreement regarding consent to the creation of municipal utility  
            districts and development of the Wedemeyer Ranch between the City of Leander, Howard Barkley  
            Wedemeyer, Leander Municipal Utility District No. 1, Leander Municipal Utility District No. 2, and Leander 
            Municipal Utility District No. 3 
            Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 

        Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette  to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
     25.  Consider approval of an Agreement Regarding Consent to Creation of Municipal Utility District and  
            Development of the Lively Tract and consider approval of an Ordinance Confirming the City’s Consent to  
            the Creation of the West Williamson County Municipal Utility District No. 2 and Incorporating Terms of the  
            Consent Agreement into the Consent Ordinance 
            Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
            Motion made by Council Member Siebold  to approve the Agreement and authorize City Manager to  
            negotiate minor changes.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
     26.  Consider approval of an agreement regarding release of the Lively Tract from the Chisholm Trail Special  
            Utility District water CCN between the City of Leander, Chisholm Trail Special Utility District, and the City of  
            Georgetown 
             Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 

        Motion made by Council Member Siebold  to approve and authorize the City Manager to  
        negotiate minor changes.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting  
        “aye” 

 
     27.  Consider approval of an agreement regarding the extraterritorial jurisdiction release between the City of  
            Georgetown, the City of Leander, Donald H. Lively Family Partnership, Ltd., and Sentinel Land Company,  
             LLC 
             Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 

         Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve and authorize City Manager to negotiate 
         minor changes.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
     28.  Consider approval of a wholesale wastewater services agreement between the City of Georgetown and the  
            City of Leander to provide wastewater service to the Lively tract 
             Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 

         Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve and authorize City Manager to negotiate  
         minor changes.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
     29.  Consider approval of a temporary wholesale water services agreement between the City of Georgetown and  
            the City of Leander to provide water service to the Lively tract 
            Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 

        Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve and authorize City Manager to negotiate 
        minor changes.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
 
 
 
        
 

 



          
 
           Mayor Fielder pulled items number 30 & 31 from the agenda 
 
 

 
            
 

 
30.  Convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, to deliberate the 

acquisition and value of real property  
 
31.  Reconvene into open session to take action as deemed appropriate in the City Council’s discretion  

 regarding pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, to deliberate the acquisition and  
value of real property  
 

32.  Council Members Closing Statements 
               Council Members gave their closing statements 
 

33.  Adjournment  
       With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:50 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        Attest: 
 
 
        _______________________________                        _______________________________ 
        Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                            Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 7, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Approval of a Special Permit for the Williamson County Amateur Radio Club to Use 
Devine Lake Park for Field Day June 26-28, 2015. 
 
Background: The Williamson County Amateur Radio Club (WCARC) is requesting a special 
permit to hold their annual Field Day event in Devine Lake Park.  A special event permit is 
needed because they are asking to use the park from Friday morning through Sunday afternoon 
during times that the park would be closed. The park is closed by Ordinance from 10 pm to 6 
am daily and a curfew is in place when the park is closed. 
 
The purpose of the event is to demonstrate the Club’s ability to set up ham radio operations in 
the event that there is a local emergency so they can communicate with other ham radio 
stations throughout the Country. In the event of an emergency, ham radio can quickly become 
one of the only sources of communication to the outside world. The can get radio stations on the 
air without a power grid or the internet.  Field Day is also an opportunity to demonstrate the 
Club’s capabilities to local public officials and the community. 
 
I have spoken with Chiefs Gardner and Minton and they are supportive of this event. 
 
Financial Consideration: None. 
  
Recommendation:  Staff respectfully requests Council approval of a Special Permit for the 
Williamson County Amateur Radio Club to hold Field Day beginning Friday morning June 26th 
through Sunday afternoon June 28, 2015 in Devine Lake Park. 
 
Attachments: WCARC letter request and special permit application 
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 









AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 7, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consider Award of Contract for Managed Network Services  
 
Background: Lightspeed Consulting’s existing agreement with the City expired in April 2015.  
The City continues to utilize outsourced managed network services and foresees needing this 
support for the near term until in-house IT staff is added over the coming years. 
 
The City issued a solicitation for Managed Network Services and received responses from 
seven (7) companies.  Lightspeed Consulting has proposed the lowest fee for service and has 
scored the highest in the best value evaluation of all seven responses.   
 
Financial Consideration: $88,800 per year.   (General Fund 01-10-5555 (34%); Library 01-06-
5555 (33%); Utility Fund 20-01-5555 (33%) 
  
Recommendation: Staff respectfully recommends that the Council award a two-year contract 
plus three, one-year renewals to Lightspeed Consulting and authorize the City Manager to enter 
into the agreement.  
 
Attachments: Recommendation from City Purchasing Agent and Evaluation Matrix.  
 
Prepared by: Paul Preston, Information Technology Director 
  Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

  

INTEROFFICE MEMO 

 

DATE: April 10, 2015 

TO: Paul Preston 

FROM: Joy Simonton 

RE: Recommendation for Award for Solicitation #S15-015 Managed Network Services 

   

The Purchasing Division recommends the following award for Managed Network Services based on the 
best value evaluation process.  Seven (7) responses were received.  Twenty (20) HUBS were notified of 
the solicitation.   

Vendor: Lightspeed Consulting. 

Award: Two (2) consecutive twelve (12) month periods with three additional twelve (12) month 
renewals available. 

 

JB 

 

 

CC: FILE 



Bid Info: City of Leander 

Information Technology Managed Network Services

Solicitation No. #S15-015

Opening: 3/26/2015

Max 
Points

Lightspeed Consulting OrangePeople Net Sales Direct Wolff Logics Computer Solutions
Management 
Applications NETSYNC

25 24 20 19 14 13 12

Item #1 $88,800.00 $93,600.00 $110,240.00 $114,400.00 $158,329.60 $176,800.00 $183,040.00

Item #2 $57,600.00 $46,800.00 $34,320.00 $67,600.00 $139,131.20 $88,400.00 $100,880.00

Item #3 $0.00 $25.00 $0.00 $55.00 $0.00 $75.00 $125.00

Item #4 $0.00 $72.00 $175.00 $75.00 $0.00 $95.00 $125.00

Item #5 5-15% 25% 15% 20% 3% 10% DIR

Item #6 5-15% 25% 20% 20% 3% 10% DIR

25 $88,800 $93,600 $110,240 $114,400 $158,330 $176,800 $183,040
Remote and emergency support 

is incuded at no additional 
charge.

Remote support is included at 
no additional charge.

Remote and emergency support 
is incuded at no additional 

charge.

40 40 28 35 35 40 40 20

Exceptional qualifications.  
Adequate staff size.  Acceptable 

certifications.  City's current 
service provider.  

Adequate qualification.  Limited 
detail on certifications. Limited 

detail on staff size.

Adequate qualifications and 
certifications.  Adequate staffing 

level.  

Adequate qualifications.  Some 
certifications with some 

graduates.  Adequate staff size.  

Exceptional qualifications.  
Adequate staff size.  Acceptable 

certifications.

Exceptional qualifications and 
certifications. Adequate staffing 

level.

Limited detail on qualifications 
and certifications.  Notes 130 

staff members.

20 20 18 15 18 15 15 18
Acceptable, known approach 

and back-up plan.                                                                 
No subs used.

Acceptable back-up plan.  No 
detail on subs.

Acceptable approach.  Limited 
detail on back-up plan.  No subs 

used.

Acceptable approach.  Back-up 
plan may not interface with City's 

current infastructure.                                                               
No subs used.

Limited detail on back-up plan. 
No subs used.

Limited detail on back-up plan.  
No subs used.

Acceptable but "sample" back-
up plan.  Limited detail on subs.

15 15 13 15 15 12.5 13 14
Current vendor.                                       

Excellent customer service and 
restorative services.

See reference check scoring 
sheets.

See reference check scoring 
sheets.

See reference check scoring 
sheets.

See reference check scoring 
sheets.

See reference check scoring 
sheets.

See reference check scoring 
sheets.

TOTAL: 100 100 83 85 87 82 81 64

AWARD

References

Respondent qualifications meet City's needs; size of staff and organization; 
certification(s) in place; 

Approach and services meet City's needs; subs used; 

Reference checks

Notes

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Price and Score

Project Team Qualifications

Proposed Approach and Service Level

On-site Support 40 Hours Per Week

On-site Support 20 Hours Per Week

Remote Support 24/7/365

Emergency Support 24/7/365

Mark-up Percentage on Hardware

Mark-up Percentage on Software



AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

May 7, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for Connelly’s Crossing, Phase 2 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Connelly’s 
Crossing, Phase 2 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  
All documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including 
record drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer 
licensed in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, 
electronic files of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year 
term Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on May 7, 2015, which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through May 7, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Connelly’s Crossing, Phase 2. 
   
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits 
of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 





















AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
 

Executive Summary 

May 7, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements 
for Cold Springs, Section 7. 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for Cold Springs, 
Section 7 have been installed, inspected, and found to be satisfactorily completed.  All 
documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has been received, including record 
drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a Professional Engineer licensed 
in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and certified test results, electronic files 
of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills paid, and a two-year term 
Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two year term upon City 
Council acceptance, as anticipated, on May 7, 2015 which will provide warranty and 
maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through May 7, 2017.  The 
Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the improvements 
approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to assure that any 
defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to expiration of the 
bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for Cold Springs, Section 7. 
 
Attachments:  Location Map, Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits 
of All Bills Paid, and Final Pay Estimates 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 

















AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

May 7, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:   Ordinance of The City of Leander, Texas, Amending 
Article 13.02.004 Governing Voluntary Disconnection of Utilities And Prescribing 
Changes In Refund Policies. 
 
Background:  The proposed ordinance change would discontinue mailing utility account 
refunds that are less than $5.00 unless the customer specifically requests the refund.  In 
many instances, refund checks go uncashed which result in staff time voiding the check 
and tracking the outstanding balances.  In addition, this change would allow the City 
Manager the authority to designate these funds as they accumulate to another project or 
purpose. We currently have 206 accounts with a total refund due balance of $307 that fall 
in this category. 
 
Origination:  Jo Ann Perez, Utility Billing Supervisor 
  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration:   
 
Recommendation:  Approval 
 
Attachments:   Ordinance 
 
Prepared by:   Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



ORDINANCE NO.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING ARTICLE 13.02.004 
GOVERNING VOLUNTARY DISCONNECTION OF UTILITIES AND PRESCRIBING 
CHANGES IN REFUND POLICIES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, AN OPEN 
MEETING CLAUSE, AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR  RELATED 
MATTERS. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the public health, safety and welfare, require the adoption and enforcement 
of codes governing the provision of public utilities and services within the City of Leander, 
Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the public health, safety and welfare will be served by updating certain 
codes heretofore adopted by the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to establish fees and charges for the purpose of recovering the 
cost and expense of providing utility services to customers of the City of Leander; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is appropriate for the costs and expenses for providing utility services to 
be funded by user fees collected from persons and entities receiving the benefit of such services. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.   Findings of Fact. The findings and recitations set out in the preamble of this 
Ordinance are found to be true and correct, and that they are hereby adopted by the City Council 
and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Section 13.02.004 of the Leander Code of Ordinances (the 
“Code”), is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
 Sec. 13.02.004     Voluntary disconnection 

Water customers wishing to discontinue the use of water and wastewater service shall give notice 
thereof to the city water department. The customer’s deposit shall be applied to any outstanding 
balance then due and the remainder, if anyequal to or greater than $5.00, shall be refunded upon 
the termination of utility service. Failure to give such notice shall render such water customer 
liable for the payment of all water and wastewater bills to the premises until such notice has been 
given. Refund amounts less than $5.00 shall be refunded upon written request from the customer 
if the request is made within thirty-six (36) months of termination of utility service. The City 
Manager is authorized to designate all or any portion of non-refunded customer credit amounts 
less than $5.00 for other municipal purposes. 
 
Section 3.   Savings Clause.  All rights and remedies of the City of Leander are expressly saved 
as to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting utilities and utility fees 
which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued 



violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, 
under such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until 
final disposition by the courts. 
 
Section 4   Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after final passage and 
publication in the manner required by the Texas Local Government Code and the Charter. 
 
Section 5.   Severability.   It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect 
any of the remaining sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance, 
since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this 
Ordinance of any such invalid section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase. If any provision of 
this Ordinance shall be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity 
shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect 
without the invalid provision, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 
  
Section 6.   Open Meetings.   It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required, and that public notice of the 
time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this 7th day of May, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:       CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
  
  
______________________________   ____________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary      Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 
Executive Summary 

May 7, 2015 

Agenda Subject: Consider a one-time only exception to the Personnel Policy to allow 

for employees to donate vacation time. 

 

Background: At this time, our current personnel policy does not allow for donation of 

vacation time, but we are considering a one-time exception for this circumstance. Human 

Resources has been discussing adopting a vacation donation policy that would provide a 

context to allow employees to help their peers during times of true hardship. Although 

the policy has been written, it is a part of a personnel policy rewrite that is incomplete 

and has not yet been submitted for approval.  

 We have an employee with a true need. We would like to try to address this 

specific need and use this opportunity to evaluate whether adopting a vacation donation 

policy could be a realistic, manageable best practice for the City moving forward. 

We have a long term employee who has a serious health condition and, although 

eligible for FMLA leave for job protection, has no paid leave. As a part time employee 

per city policy, this person is ineligible for paid leave and has no medical coverage 

through the city or any other source. 

If employees would like to donate hours from their vacation balance in one hour 

increments, they will be asked to complete a form and return to Human Resources. 

Finance will process the donated vacation hours and pay the employee with those hours. 

 

Origination: Human Resources 

Recommendation: n/a 

Attachments:    None 

Prepared by:   Cindy Hignite, PHR, Human Resources Director 



AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 07, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-007: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning 1.7 acres more or less of Lot 1, Block A of the 
Village Subdivision, located at 801 Apache Trail, WCAD ID 
#R487426. Currently, the property is zoned GC-3-C (General 
Commercial) the applicant is proposing to zone the property to 
MF-2-B (Multi-Family), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Josh Becker on behalf of Mike O’Dell. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the request at the April 24, 
2015 meeting with the following conditions: 
1. A six (6’) foot masonry wall is required to be constructed 

adjacent to the single-family development. 
2. Access to the site will be provided by the existing driveway, 

any other driveways will be for emergency access only. 
3. No parking modules, drive aisles, driveways, garages or similar 

facilities are permitted between the building(s) closets to the 
street(s) and the street frontage. 
 

Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5.  Letter of Intent 
 6.   Letter from Neighborhood 
 7.  Ordinance 
 8.  Minutes–Planning & Zoning Commission April 23, 2015 
 
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 04/29/2015 



Attachment # 1           

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-007 

801 Apache Trail 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: 2400 Bagdad, LLC. 
 
Current Zoning: GC-3-C (General Commercial) 
    
Proposed Zoning: MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 
 
Size and Location: The property is located at 801 Apache Trail and is a 1.7 acre tract, more or 

less, of The Village Lot 1, Block A   
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  LC-2-B Developed Single Family Home located in a local commercial 
zoned property 

EAST SFE-2-B Developed Single Family Homes, Timberline West Section 2 
Subdivision 

SOUTH SFE-2-B Developed Single Family Homes, Ridge Oak Sec. 1 
Subdivision 

WEST GC-3-C Developed tenant space: Young Minds Montessori Preschool 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

1 
 



Attachment # 1           

      

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

USE COMPONENTS:   
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   
Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 

office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
MF – MULTI-FAMILY:   

Features:  Apartments (25 un./ac. if Type A; 18 un./ac. if Type B) 
Intent:  Development of multi-family dwelling structures. Such components are generally 

intended to serve as a buffer between single-family neighborhoods and more intensive uses 
such as commercial uses or arterial roadways.  Such components are also intended to create 
more variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the community but are intended to be 
utilized in small areas to avoid large tracts devoted to strictly multi-family residential 
development.  The goal is to avoid more than twenty-five (25) acres of contiguous land having 
a Multi-Family component.  Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification 
street. 

 
 

SITE COMPONENT: 
TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
TYPE 3:   
Features:  Accessory buildings up to 30% of primary building; accessory dwellings; drive-thru 

service; limited outdoor display and storage; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 
overhead service doors, no indoor parking required. 

Intent:   
2 

 



Attachment # 1           

(1) A Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where 
adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition. 

(2) This component is intended to be utilized with residential components where accessory dwellings 
or additional accessory structures are appropriate and are not provided for in the Type 1 or 2 site 
components. 

(3) This component is intended to be combined with LO, LC, GC, LI and HI components where it is 
appropriate to utilize the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and 
storage or accessory buildings. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 
TYPE C (non-residential only):   
Features:  35% masonry (60% street facing); 3 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type C architectural component is intended to be utilized only in the LO, LC, GC, LI and HI 

use components for intermediate quality development.  
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component can help to provide for 

harmonious land use transitions from districts that are less restricted to districts that are more 
restricted. 

(3) This component is not intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 
that may be adjacent to less restricted districts. 

 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 
  

3 
 



Attachment # 1           

 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The property is presently zoned as a GC-3-C (General Commercial) district and the applicant is 
requesting to rezone the eastern 1.7 acre portion of the property to a MF-2-B (Multi-Family) 
district to facilitate the development of apartment homes.  The property is located at 801 Apache 
Trail, which is the northeast corner of the intersection of Apache Trail and S. Bagdad Rd.  The 
adjacent properties to the east and south contain existing single family homes.  The property to 
the west of this site is developed tenant space which is presently occupied by Young Minds 
Montessori Preschool. The property to the north is zoned as a LC-2-B (Local Commercial) 
district and is presently vacant.  
 
The property is not located within a development node and is situated between a Neighborhood 
Center Development Node and a Community Center Node.  It falls completely within the 
residential defined area per the Future Land Use Map. The intent of the MF use component is to 
serve as a buffer between single family neighborhoods and more intensive commercial uses or 
arterial roadways. This component intends to create more variety of housing in the community, 
but is to be utilized in small areas to avoid large contiguous tracts of solely multi-family 
development. Access for this use component should be provided by a collector or higher 
classification street.  
 
The change to the Type B Architectural Component would require 85% masonry on all first 
stories and 50% masonry on each additional story. Front primary building façades would be 
required to have four architectural design features incorporated into them.  The building height 
for the apartment homes would be limited to 35 ft at a distance of 25 ft plus one foot increase in 
height for each one foot increase in setback beyond 25 ft from a permanent single-family or two 
family zoned districts.  Otherwise, the maximum primary building / structure height for any 
multi-family associated building is 45 ft.  Furthermore, the Type B Architectural Component 
would limit the unit density to 18.0 units/acre. 
 
At 1.7 acres the applicant could build a maximum of 30 units with minimum unit sizes as 
outlined in the MF use component.  The applicant’s intent letter denotes that he would consider 
construction of 20 – 24 units as apartment homes. The site for the apartments would have 
primary access off of a local residential street (Apache Trail), but it is located within 250 ft of S. 
Bagdad Rd. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The applicant’s request meets the majority of the intent statements for the MF Use Component.  
It would serve as a buffer between single family neighborhoods and more intensive commercial 
uses and an arterial roadway (S. Bagdad Rd.), and the request is proposed for a small area while 
avoiding 25 and larger contiguous acres of MF.  Furthermore, the request brings the identified 
piece of property into more compliance with the City’s adopted Future Land Use Plan, as it is 
located within a residentially identified area and is changing the land use to one that is more 
residential in nature.   Staff recommends approval of the zone change from GC-3-C to MF-2-B, 
seeing that the request is in compliance with the intent statements of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance and goals of the Future Land Use Plan. 
 

4 
 



OSAGE DR

S B
AG

DA
D 

RD

APACHE TRL

TE
JA

S T
RL

RUBY ISLE DR

NEWCASTLE LN

CA
ST

LE
WO

OD
 TR

L

SIOUX TRL
CH

EY
EN

NE
 S

T

OAKWOOD DR

SEMINOLE RD

WHITE STALLION WAY

COUNTY CORK LN

OAK HOLLOW DR

ORO BELLE WAY

EL
KH

OR
N 

RA
NC

H 
RD

SH
ANNON CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-007
Attachment #2
Current Zoning
801 Apache Trail

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

Future Annexation Per DA

Involuntary Annexation

Voluntary Annexation

Neighborhood
Center
Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



TIMBERLINE WEST,SEC 1

BOULDERS AT
CRYSTAL FALLS,PH I

RIDGEOAKS,SEC 1

TIMBERLINEWEST, SEC 2

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 3

COUNTY GLEN,SEC 6

^

OSAGE DR

S B
AG

DA
D 

RD

APACHE TRL

TE
JA

S T
RL

RUBY ISLE DR

NEWCASTLE LN

SIOUX TRL

CA
ST

LE
WO

OD
 TR

L

CHEYENNE ST

SEMINOLE RD

OAKWOOD DR

WHITE STALLION WAY

COUNTY CORK LN
EMERALD ISLE DR

OAK HOLLOW DR

ORO BELLE WAY

SH
ANNON CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-007
Attachment #3
Proposed Zoning Map
801 Apache Trail

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

Future Annexation Per DA

Involuntary Annexation

Voluntary Annexation

Proposed MF-2-B

Neighborhood
Center
Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



S B
AG

DA
D 

RD

APACHE TRL

TE
JA

S T
RL

RUBY ISLE DR

NEWCASTLE LN

CA
ST

LE
WO

OD
 TR

L

CH
EY

EN
NE

 S
T

SIOUX TRL

WHITE STALLION WAY

SEMINOLE RD

OAKWOOD DR

SH
AN

NON CIR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-007 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
801 Apache Trail

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



msiwek
Typewritten Text
Attachment 5

msiwek
Typewritten Text



1

Robin Griffin

From: joi solt [joisolt@att.net]
Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2015 10:30 AM
To: Robin Griffin
Subject: zoning case 15-z-007

My husband and I have lived at 606 Apache Trl for over thirty years and we enjoy the relative quiet of 
our neighborhood, we do not want to see that quietude disrupted with apartments being built so close 
to our home. It would increase traffic on our street tremendously. Please do not change the zoning. It 
would be a far better use of that property for businesses to go in there creating jobs. Sincerely Joi 
Solt 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING OF A PORTION OF A LOT 
FROM GC-3-C (GENERAL COMMERCIAL) TO MF-2-B (MULTI-
FAMILY); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR 
RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 1.7 acres, more or less, 
located at 801 Apache Trail, Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described 
in Exhibits “A” and “B”, legally described as 1.7 acres out of Lot 1, Block A of the Village 
Subdivision; identified by tax identification number R487426; more particularly described in 
document number 2014013613 recorded in the Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from GC-3-C (General Commercial) to MF-2-B (Multi-Family) as shown 
in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 7th day of May, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 21st day of May, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT B









  AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 
 
 
 
 

 
                                                     Executive Summary 

 
April 16, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Variance 15-VA-003: Hold a public hearing and 

consider a request for a variance to Article III, Sec. 42 (e) of the 
subdivision ordinance regarding sidewalk requirements for the 
property legally described as Lot 6 of the Kittie Hill Acres 
Subdivision (Tracts 5 & 6 Amended), located at 500 Winding Oak 
Trail; WCAD ID #R098022, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 

 
Background: This request is the final step in the variance process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: David Singleton on behalf of Southwest Services Inc. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: The applicant has withdrawn their request. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Withdrawal Letter 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 04/20/2015 
 





AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 7, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Acceptance of a $400,000 Texas Parks & Wildlife Grant for Lakewood Community 
Park 
 
Background: On January 22nd the Texas Parks & Wildlife Department approved the City’s 
grant application to construct initial improvements in Lakewood Community Park.  The grant is a 
50% matching grant with the City’s local match coming from the value of the donated parkland 
currently being held by the Williamson County Park Foundation and Crystal Springs Developer. 
 
Initial improvements supported by the grant include concrete and nature trails, 2 baseball 
backstops, nature area kiosk, 2 picnic pavilions, picnic tables, benches, canoe/kayak pier, 
fishing pier and project signs.   
 
Financial Consideration: $400,000 
  
Recommendation:  Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council accept the $400,000 
grant and authorized the Parks & Recreation Director to execute the grant agreement 
documents. 
 
Attachments: TPWD Project Agreement  
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 























AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 
Executive Summary 

May 7, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  A Resolution of the City of Leander, Texas, accepting a petition for 
annexation of a 13.8481 acre, more or less, tract of land located in Williamson County, Texas, 
known as the Ironwood tract; setting an annexation schedule; providing for open meetings and 
other related matters. 
  
Background:  The resolution accepts the petition for voluntary annexation for the tracts of land 
as shown on the attached maps.  The property includes two tracts totaling approximately 13.8481 
acres at the southeast corner of Ronald Reagan Blvd and SH 29.  The resolution sets the two 
public hearings for July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  The first reading of the ordinance is 
scheduled for August 6, 2015 and the second and final reading is scheduled for August 20, 2015.  
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approving the resolution 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Petition 
2. Resolution with exhibits 
3. Annexation Schedule 
4. Location maps 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 4/28/2015 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  ____________________     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 
PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 13.8481 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF 
LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of certain property located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
property, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City 
and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of the 
Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the subject property, including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft services 
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:   
 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 10.2941 acres, more or less, situated in the 

Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being 
more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 3.555 acres, more or less, being part of the 

Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being 
more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 

  

 

 



Two public hearings are set for the dates of July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  Notice of such hearings 
shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the annexation 
request. 
 

Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 7th day of May, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 



Exhibit “A”  
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 

10.2941 ACRES & 3.555 ACRES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

  

 

 



 

Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 

  

 

 



 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 

  

 

 



and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 
customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable 
portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ 
owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject 
properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies 
of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained 
by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions 
will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other 
similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for 
service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a 
septic system that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with 
all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the 
subject property owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event the 

City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service to an 
area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 

  

 

 



dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in the 
South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the 
time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion 
thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a 
condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and 
the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the 
subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 
will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in 
the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a 
lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each building or structure is 
applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date application is made to the 
City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the 
Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for 
wastewater service to similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City 
policies, rules, and ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and 
customers located within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement are similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual 
development agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 

  

 

 



  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 
and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  
 
 

  

 

 



W SH 29

CR 26
8

KAUFFMAN LOOP

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

PENNA LN

ARREZO LN

CORTONA LN

CR 267

FLORENZ LN

GROSSETO LN

BONNET BLVD

MAGONA TRL

MA
RT

IN
O 

TR
L

RUFFINO LN

VIA DE SIENNA BLVD

Ë
0 400 800

Feet

Subject Parcels
WCAD Parcel Boundaries
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Subject Parcels

Note:
Some variations may exist between survey
information and parcel database.

Ironwood - 13.8481 Ac Voluntary Annexation



STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 REQUEST & PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 FOR ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned is the owner of certain tracts of property located within 
Williamson County, Texas, such property being more particularly described hereinafter by true and 
correct legal description (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned has sought the annexation of the subject property by the City 
of Leander, Texas, (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “City”), in order to obtain the benefits of 
City services to the subject property by the City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to §43.021, Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code and the request of the 
property owner, is authorized to annex the subject property; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned agrees and consents to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agrees to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned by this Petition and Request:  
 
 SECTION ONE:  Requests the City Council of the City to commence annexation 
proceedings and to annex into the corporate limits of the City of Leander, Texas, of all portions of 
the subject property, including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way, not previously 
annexed into the City and further described as follows: 
 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 10.2941 acres, more or less, situated in 

the Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and 
being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 All that certain tract or parcel of land being 3.555 acres, more or less, being part of 

the Greenlief Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5, located in Williamson County, Texas, and 
being more particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 SECTION TWO:  Requests that after annexation the City provide such services as are 
legally permissible and provided by the City, including sanitation, water and general governmental 
services as set forth in the municipal services plan. 
 



 SECTION THREE:  Acknowledges and represents having received, read and understood 
the attached “draft” Service Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, (proposed to be applicable to and 
adopted for the subject property) and that such “draft” Service Plan is wholly adequate and 
acceptable to the undersigned who hereby requests the City Council to proceed with the annexation 
and preparation of a final Municipal Service Plan and publish notice and hold the requisite public 
hearings thereon, in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Texas. 
  
 SECTION FOUR:  Acknowledges that the undersigned understands and agrees that all city 
services to the subject property will be provided by the City on the same terms and conditions as 
provided to other similarly situated areas of the City and as provided in the Municipal Service Plan. 
 
 SECTION FIVE:  Agrees that a copy of this Request and Petition may be filed of record in 
the offices of the City of Leander and in the real property records of Williamson County, Texas, and 
shall be notice to and binding upon all persons or entities now or hereafter having any interest in the 
subject property. 
 
 FILED, this ___ day of _________________ 2015, with the City Secretary of the City of 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 
     Petitioner – 10.2941 Acres 
 
     SEC 29/RR, LP, a Texas Limited Partnership   
     
     By: SEC 29/RR GP, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability  
     Company, its General Partner  
 
     By: ____________________      
     Name: Scot W. Krieger  
     Title: Managing Member 
      
     Petitioner – 3.555 Acres 
  
     SWTWD, Ltd., a Texas Limited Partnership 
 
     By: 8833, GP, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability Company, 
     its General Partner 
      
     By: ____________________ 
     Name: Rodney D. Susholtz 
     Title: Sole Member 
  
     Devon Lea Susholtz 2001 Family Trust   
  
     By: ____________________     
     Name: Devon Susholtz     
     Title: Trustee   



     Ironwood Real Estate, LLC, a Texas Limited Liability  
     Company 
      
     By: _____________________ 
     Name: Scot W. Krieger  
     Title: Managing Member 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Scot W. Krieger, managing member of SEC 29/RR GP, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, general partner of SEC 29/RR, LP, a Texas limited partnership and 
Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity 
and that they executed the same for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein 
stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
    
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Rodney D. Susholtz, sole member of 8833, GP, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company, general partner of SWTWD, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership and Owner of the 
subject property and Petitioner herein, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to 
the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity and that they 
executed the same for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 



 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Devon Susholtz, Trustee of the Devon Lea Susholtz 2001 Family Trust and 
Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity 
and that they executed the same for the purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein 
stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______________ § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared Scot W. Krieger, managing member of Ironwood Real Estate, LLC, a 
Texas limited liability company and Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, known to 
me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that 
they had authority to bind the entity and that they executed the same for the purposes therein 
expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “A” 
 

DESCRIPTIONS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

 10.2941 ACRES & 3.555 ACRES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently 
within the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the 
same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 



 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall 
be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request 
of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will 
consider rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by 
the landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services 
will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility 
in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the 
subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject 
properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the 
subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted and 
maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs 
and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City 
in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for 



service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of the 
annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event 

the City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater 
service to an area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement”). The landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective 
grantees, successors, assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to 
pay three hundred fifty dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System 
Reservation Fee”), as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for 
the purpose of reserving capacity in the South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined 
in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the time that the landowner submits a 
preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion thereof, and acknowledges and 
agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a condition of preliminary 
plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ 
respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the subject 
property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 



will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set 
forth in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable 
with respect to a lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each 
building or structure is applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date 
application is made to the City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The 
System Reservation Fee and the Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, 
rates, and charges charged by the City for wastewater service to similarly situated 
customers.  When evaluating the application of City policies, rules, and ordinances to 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and customers located within the 
area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement are similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual development agreements that 
may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 
traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage 

facilities, construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the 
need therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 

markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City; 
 



(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 
property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to 
service the property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject 
property or redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as 
a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or 
redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject 
property the same as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service 
Plan is attached.  

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
Bradley Tract +/- 126.098 Acres and Ironwood Tract +/- 13.8481 Acres 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
May 7, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015; Council directs 
development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By June 1, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
June 17, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
July 1, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

July 2, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

July 16, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
August 6, 2015* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

August 20, 2015; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 
Executive Summary 

May 7, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:  A Resolution of the City of Leander, Texas, accepting a petition for 
annexation of a 126.098 acre, more or less, tract of land located in Williamson County, Texas, 
known as the Bradley tract; setting an annexation schedule; providing for open meetings and 
other related matters. 
  
Background:  The resolution accepts the petition for voluntary annexation for the tracts of land 
as shown on the attached maps.  The property includes one tract totaling approximately 126.098 
acres north of the South San Gabriel River and east of Ronald Reagan Blvd.  The resolution sets 
the two public hearings for July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  The first reading of the ordinance is 
scheduled for August 6, 2015 and the second and final reading is scheduled for August 20, 2015.  
     
Origination:  Applicants 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approving the resolution 
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Petition 
2. Resolution with exhibits 
3. Annexation Schedule 
4. Location maps 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 
 
 4/28/2015 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  ____________________     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 
PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 126.098 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, OF 
LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of certain property located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
property, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City 
and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of the 
Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the subject property, including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft services 
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:   
 
 All those certain tracts or parcels of land being 126.098  acres, more or less, being part 

of the Greenleaf Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5 and the Bartholomew Manlove Survey, 
Abstract No. 420, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being more particularly 
shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 
purposes.    

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015.  Notice of such hearings 
shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the annexation 
request. 
 

  

 

 



Section 3. Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 7th day of May, 2015. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  

  

 

 



Exhibit “A”  
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 

+/- 126.098 ACRES 

  

 

 



 

 

  

 

 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 

  

 

 



 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 
and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 

  

 

 



customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable 
portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions 
thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ 
owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject 
properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly 
situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies 
of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained 
by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions 
will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other 
similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for 
service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a 
septic system that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with 
all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the 
subject property owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event the 

City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service to an 
area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 
dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in the 

  

 

 



South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, at the 
time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject property, or any portion 
thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System Reservation Fee shall be a 
condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, on behalf of themselves and 
the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and subsequent purchasers of the 
subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building site within the subject property that 
will be provided with wastewater service by the City shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in 
the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a 
lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the time the building permit for each building or structure is 
applied for, or if no building permit is required, then upon the date application is made to the 
City for connection to the City’s wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the 
Connection Fee shall be in addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for 
wastewater service to similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City 
policies, rules, and ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and 
customers located within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement are similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual 
development agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 

  

 

 



  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 
and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  
 
 

  

 

 



RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

RI
DG

E V
IE

W 
DR

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

BRADLEY RANCH RD

CR 274

SANTA MARIA ST

LA GROTTA LN

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RONALD W
 REAGAN BLVD

Ë
0 400 800

Feet

Subject Parcel
WCAD Parcel Boundaries
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Subject Parcel

Bradley - 126.098 Ac Voluntary Annexation

Note:
Some variations may exist between survey
information and parcel database.



STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 REQUEST & PETITION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 FOR ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned is the owner of certain tracts of property located within 
Williamson County, Texas, such property being more particularly described hereinafter by true and 
correct legal description (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned has sought the annexation of the subject property by the City 
of Leander, Texas, (hereinafter sometimes referred to as “City”), in order to obtain the benefits of 
City services to the subject property by the City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the 
City;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to §43.021, Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code and the request of the 
property owner, is authorized to annex the subject property; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the undersigned agrees and consents to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agrees to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned by this Petition and Request:  
 
 SECTION ONE:  Requests the City Council of the City to commence annexation 
proceedings and to annex into the corporate limits of the City of Leander, Texas, of all portions of 
the subject property, including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way, not previously 
annexed into the City and further described as follows: 
 
 All those certain tracts or parcels of land being 126.098  acres, more or less, being 

part of the Greenleaf Fisk Survey, Abstract No. 5 and the Bartholomew Manlove 
Survey, Abstract No. 420, located in Williamson County, Texas, and being more 
particularly shown and described in the Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
 SECTION TWO:  Requests that after annexation the City provide such services as are 
legally permissible and provided by the City, including sanitation, water and general governmental 
services as set forth in the municipal services plan. 
 
 SECTION THREE:  Acknowledges and represents having received, read and understood 
the attached “draft” Service Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, (proposed to be applicable to and 
adopted for the subject property) and that such “draft” Service Plan is wholly adequate and 
acceptable to the undersigned who hereby requests the City Council to proceed with the annexation 



and preparation of a final Municipal Service Plan and publish notice and hold the requisite public 
hearings thereon, in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Texas. 
  
 SECTION FOUR:  Acknowledges that the undersigned understands and agrees that all city 
services to the subject property will be provided by the City on the same terms and conditions as 
provided to other similarly situated areas of the City and as provided in the Municipal Service Plan. 
 
 SECTION FIVE:  Agrees that a copy of this Request and Petition may be filed of record in 
the offices of the City of Leander and in the real property records of Williamson County, Texas, and 
shall be notice to and binding upon all persons or entities now or hereafter having any interest in the 
subject property. 
 
 FILED, this ___ day of _________________ 2015, with the City Secretary of the City of 
Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 
 
       
      Petitioner: Development Solutions Bradley, LLC 

   
      By: ____________________________ 
      Name: __________________________ 
      Title: ___________________________   
     
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
    
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
day personally appeared _________________________________, _______________________ of 
Development Solutions Bradley, LLC and Owner of the subject property and Petitioner herein, 
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged that they had authority to bind the entity and that they executed the same for the 
purposes therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __day of ___________ 2015. 
 
(SEAL)   

     _____________________________________ 
                  Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
    



 

Exhibit “A” 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

+/- 126.098 ACRES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently 
within the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the 
same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 



 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall 
be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request 
of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will 
consider rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by 
the landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services 
will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility 
in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the 
subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject 
properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the 
subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted and 
maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs 
and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City 
in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for 



service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of the 
annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) (a) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
  (b) This paragraph shall apply, in addition to paragraph 2B(ii)(a), in the event 

the City contracts with City of Liberty Hill, Texas to provide wholesale wastewater service 
to an area that includes the subject property (the “Wholesale Wastewater Agreement”). The 
landowners, on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, 
assigns and subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree to pay three hundred fifty 
dollars ($350.00) per living unit equivalent (the “System Reservation Fee”), as that term is 
defined in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, for the purpose of reserving capacity in 
the South San Gabriel Plant, as that term is defined in the Wholesale Wastewater 
Agreement, at the time that the landowner submits a preliminary plat for the subject 
property, or any portion thereof, and acknowledges and agrees that payment of the System 
Reservation Fee shall be a condition of preliminary plat approval.  Further, the landowners, 
on behalf of themselves and the landowners’ respective grantees, successors, assigns, and 
subsequent purchasers of the subject property, agree that each lot, tract, parcel or building 
site within the subject property that will be provided with wastewater service by the City 



shall pay the Connection Fee set forth in the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  The 
Connection Fee shall be payable with respect to a lot, tract, parcel, or building site at the 
time the building permit for each building or structure is applied for, or if no building permit 
is required, then upon the date application is made to the City for connection to the City’s 
wastewater system.  The System Reservation Fee and the Connection Fee shall be in 
addition to any other fee, rates, and charges charged by the City for wastewater service to 
similarly situated customers.  When evaluating the application of City policies, rules, and 
ordinances to similarly situated areas and customers of the City, land and customers located 
within the area served by the City pursuant to the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement are 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to individual development 
agreements that may be applicable to such land. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject 
property and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  
The maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other 
traffic control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed 
public streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, 
as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage 

facilities, construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the 
need therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street 

markings and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by 
appropriate study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 
property owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to 
service the property.    



 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject 
property or redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as 
a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or 
redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject 
property the same as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service 
Plan is attached.  

 



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
Bradley Tract +/- 126.098 Acres and Ironwood Tract +/- 13.8481 Acres 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
May 7, 2015 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings July 2, 2015 and July 16, 2015; Council directs 
development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By June 1, 2015 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
June 17, 2015** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
July 1, 2015** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public Hearing  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

July 2, 2015* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

July 16, 2015* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING 

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
August 6, 2015* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

August 20, 2015; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday. 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 07, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Street Vacate Case 15-SV-002:  First reading and consider action 

on the vacation of a portion of North Creek Drive ROW, generally 
located to the northwest of the intersection of N Bagdad Road and 
Old 2243 W; and more specifically located to the west of N 
Bagdad Road and east of Sparkling Brook Lane, Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: A portion of North Creek Drive is a platted ROW that was never 

constructed.  The adjacent property owner to the north and south is 
proposing a multi-family development and would like to 
incorporate the ROW into the project.   

 
Origination: Applicant:  Tim Haynie Jr. on behalf of Bruce Nakfoor  
 
Financial  
Consideration: The City will receive the amount authorized by the City Council 

for the sale of the ROW. 
 
Recommendation: The appraiser provided a value in the amount of $25,000 for the 

land proposed to be vacated which is $0.77 per square foot.  If the 
ROW vacation is approved an easement for Atmos will be required 
for an existing gas line.   

 
Attachments: 1.  Location Exhibit 
 2.  Aerial Exhibit 
 3.  Appraisal 
 4.  Letter of Intent 
 5.  Ordinance 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Assistant City Manager  04/29/2015 
 



EONCR,SEC 1
EONCR,SEC 3

ESTATES OF
NORTH CREEK
RANCH, SEC 4

BAGDAD
ES

NORTHCREEK,SEC 3

NORTH CREEKSEC 1
NORTHCREEKCOMMPARK

LEANDER 2243
SUBDIVISION

BAGDAD
CEMETERY

BAGDADMEADOWS

N. CREEK
RANCH
PARK

NORTH CREEK DR

2A

5D

2A

5D

N BAGDAD RD

OLD 2243 WEST

RI
VE

RW
AY

 LN

EA
GL

EC
RE

EK
 D

R

RANCHERO RD

WATERFALL AVE

SP
AR

KL
IN

G 
BR

OO
K 

LN

NORTH CREEK BLVD

EN
CI

NI
TA

 D
R

ENCANTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

RED RIVER LN

RI
O 

BR
AV

O 
LO

OP

MOUNTAIN SPRING LN

BACH DR

CR 279

RUBLES CT
BE

LL
O 

DR

NORTH CREEK DR

SOUTHCREEK DR
WH

ITL
EY

 D
R

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë
0 200 400

Feet

STREET VACATE 15-SV-002

Attachment #1
ROW Vacation Request
North Creek Drive

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC

SFL
SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF

LO
LC
GC
HC
HI

CITY MAPË



ESTATES OF
NORTH CREEK
RANCH, SEC 4

NORTHCREEK,SEC 3

NORTH CREEKSEC 1
NORTHCREEKCOMMPARK

BAGDAD
CEMETERY

N. CREEK
RANCH
PARK

NORTH CREEK DR

2A

5D

2A

5D

N BAGDAD RD

RI
VE

RW
AY

 LN

SP
AR

KL
IN

G 
BR

OO
K 

LN

WATERFALL AVE

EN
CI

NI
TA

 D
R

RED RIVER LN

RANCHERO RD

MOUNTAIN SPRING LN

NORTH CREEK BLVD

NORTH CREEK DR

BACH DR

SOUTHCREEK DR

RI
O 

BR
AV

O 
LO

OP

CR 279

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë
0 200 400

Feet

STREET VACATE 15-SV-002

Attachment #2
ROW Vacation Request
North Creek Drive
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries

CITY MAPË















































































































































 ORDINANCE NO. _____________________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, CLOSING, 

VACATING, AND ABANDONING A PORTION OF STREET RIGHT-OF-
WAY COMMONLY KNOWN NORTH CREEK DRIVE; AUTHORIZING 
CONVEYANCE TO ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS IN PROPORTION 
TO ABUTTING OWNERSHIP; PROVIDING FINDINGS OF FACT; 
AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF SUCH ABANDONED STREET 
RIGHT-OF-WAY BY SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED; PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY, EFFECTIVE DATE AND OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSES; 
AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the street right-of-way commonly known North Creek Drive being 0.703 
acres of land, more or less, as shown in Exhibit “A”, was platted but never constructed, and said 
street right-of-way is surplus and not necessary for use by the City, the general public, or the 
landowners adjacent thereto as streets; 
  
 WHEREAS, Chapt. 272, Tex. Loc. Gov't Code, authorizes political subdivisions to sell and 
convey rights-of-way to abutting owners in proportion to abutting ownership at an appraised fair 
market value;  
 
 WHEREAS, there is an existing gas line located within the North Creek Drive right-of-
way; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has an existing franchise agreement with Atmos Energy that allows 
for the placement of utility lines within City rights-of-way; 
 
 WHEREAS, as a condition of the vacation, conveyance and purchase price of the North 
Creek Drive right-of-way, the abutting property owner shall simultaneously execute an approximate 
fifteen foot (15’) easement reserving the existing gas line in favor of Atmos Energy; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council approves the amount of $_______ as the fair market value of 
the above described North Creek Drive street right-of-way; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Ordinance as findings of fact by the City Council of Leander, Texas. 
 
 Section 2. Right-of-Way.  The sixty foot (60’), more or less, wide right-of-way commonly 
known as North Creek Drive, located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being 0.703 acres, 
more or less, of land situated in the Charles Cochran Survey, Abstract No. 134, in Williamson 
County, Texas being all of North Creek Drive, as set out on the plat of North Creek Commercial 
Park, a subdivision recorded in Cabinet H, Slide 342 of the Plat Records of Williamson County, 

 
  



Texas, located perpendicular to and abutting to the west of Bagdad Road, Williamson County, 
Texas and as more particularly shown and described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes, is hereby permanently closed.  Said right-of-way is hereinafter 
referred to as the Property or the street right-of-way.  The Property shall be vacated and abandoned 
by the City and the general public upon conveyance of such parcel pursuant to Section 3.  
 
 Section 3.  Consideration and Authorization to Execute Special Warranty Deed.  The 
Mayor and the City Secretary be and are hereby authorized, empowered, instructed and directed to 
execute a special warranty deed or deeds, from time to time, in a form substantially similar to that 
set forth in Exhibit “B”, conveying the rights and interests of the City in the Property to abutting 
property owners, in proportion to their ownership of the abutting property; provided that an owner 
in fee of abutting property may, by a written notarized instrument, release and assign his or her right 
to purchase a portion of the street right-of-way to any other owner of property that abuts such street 
right-of-way, thereby authorizing the City to convey such interest to such assignee; provided that 
said special warranty deed shall reserve drainage and/or public utility easements to be held by the 
City as described in the special warranty deed attached as Exhibit “B”, and provided that the total 
purchase price to be paid for such property shall be $_______ for such tract of right-of-way.  Upon 
the payment of the purchase price, any surveying fees, and a proportionate amount of attorneys fees 
related to drafting and reviewing documents necessary to convey the Property, the execution and 
filing of a Release and Assignment of Interest in Property executed by an abutting property owner 
in the county real property records, as necessary, and the execution of such deed, such deed shall be 
and become a valid and binding act and deed of the City of Leander, Texas.   
 
 Section 4.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this Ordinance be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of 
such section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions 
thereof; but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force 
and effect and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
 Section 5.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage. 
 
 Section 6.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this _____ day of __________, 2015. 

 
Attest:       THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   _________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

 
  



Exhibit “A” 
 

(Insert survey and Exhibit) 
 

 
  



Exhibit “B” 
 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  §  
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
      That the City of Leander, Texas, a Texas municipal corporation, hereinafter called 
“GRANTOR,” for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00), together 
with other good and valuable consideration, to GRANTOR cash in hand paid by Bruce Nakfoor, 
hereinafter called “GRANTEE”, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has GRANTED, 
SOLD and CONVEYED, and by these presents does GRANT, SELL and CONVEY unto the 
said GRANTEES, all that certain lot, tract or parcel of land known and described as follows: 
 
PROPERTY:  
 

All that certain parcel of land being a sixty foot (60’), more or less, wide right-of-
way commonly known as North Creek Drive, located in Leander, Williamson 
County, Texas, being 0.703 acres, more or less, of land situated in the Charles 
Cochran Survey, Abstract No. 134, Williamson County, Texas being all of North 
Creek Drive, as set out on the plat of North Creek Commercial Park, a subdivision 
recorded in Cabinet H, Slide 342 of the Plat Records of Williamson County, Texas , 
located perpendicular to and abutting to the west of Bagdad Road, Williamson 
County, Texas and as more particularly shown and described in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes. 
 

     This conveyance is expressly made subject to the easements reserved in this instrument, 
if any, and the restrictions, covenants and easements, if any, apparent on the ground, in use or 
existing of record in the office of the County Clerk of Williamson County, Texas, to which 
reference is made herein for all purposes.   
 
 GRANTEE owns the lots immediately adjacent to and abutting the Property, being more 
particularly described as Lots 1 and 2, North Creek Commercial Park in Williamson County, 
Texas (the “Lots”).  Section 7(a)(9), Article I, Chapter 10, Leander Code of Ordinances provides 
that the conveyance of any land by the City of Leander (the “City”) to a private entity when such 
land is to be added to an existing lot is exempt from the City’s subdivision regulations (the 
“Exemption”).  For the purpose of conveyance of the Property being subject to the Exemption 
and for and in consideration of the conveyance of the Property to GRANTEE, GRANTEE 
binds the Property and the Lots (hereinafter referred to collectively as the “Tracts”) to this 
covenant which shall run with the land until released by compliance with this deed or the City’s 
regulations for separating the Tracts or replatting of the Tracts applicable at the time of 
separation or replatting of the Tracts.  This shall be and hereby is deemed a covenant running 
with the land enforceable by the City and to be released only by the City upon demonstration of 
compliance with this deed or the then-applicable ordinances of the City.  The Tracts as combined 
shall hereinafter be treated as one lot with the outer boundaries of the Tracts being treated as the 

 
  



outer boundaries of one lot for purposes of setbacks and conveyance.  Except as otherwise 
provided herein, GRANTEE hereby binds GRANTEE and all GRANTEE’S successors, 
assigns, executors and heirs to convey and occupy the Tracts as one lot and one building site 
until such time as the Tracts are separated or replatted in compliance with then-applicable City 
ordinances and the City approves such compliance by releasing this covenant.    
 
     TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described premises, together with all and 
singular, the rights and appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging, unto the said GRANTEE, 
the heirs, executors, successors and assigns forever, and GRANTOR does hereby bind its 
successors and assigns to WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND, all and singular, the said 
premises unto the said GRANTEE, the heirs, executors, successors and assigns, against every 
person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same by, through or under the City of 
Leander, Texas, but not otherwise. 
        
 
 EXECUTED at Leander, Williamson County, Texas, this the __ day of ______________ 2015. 
 
 
Attest:       City of Leander, Texas 
                                               
____________________________   _______________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 
 
 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED BY GRANTEE:  
 
BRUCE NAKFOOR 
 
By:______________________ 
  Bruce Nakfoor   
Title:____________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  



  

 
  



THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  § 
 
     BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, 
on this day personally appeared Christopher Fielder, Mayor, of the City of Leander, Texas, 
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that she executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein 
expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __ day of ___________ 2015. 

    
 _______________________________ 

                        Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF _______________   § 
COUNTY OF _____________________  § 
 
     BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, 
on this day personally appeared Bruce Nakfoor , Grantee herein, known to me to be the person 
whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that she 
executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed and in the capacity 
therein stated. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE on this the __ day of ___________ 2015. 

    
 _______________________________ 

                       Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AFTER RECORDING, PLEASE RETURN TO: 
 
City of Leander 
City Secretary 
P.O. Box 319 
Leander, Texas 78646-0319 

 
  









AGENDA ITEM # 19 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 7, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consider Award for Architectural and Engineering Services for Fire Station #4 to BRW 
Architects and Authorize the City Manager to Negotiate a Contract for Council Approval  
 
Background: Ten vendors submitted RFQ responses on April 2, 2015 to provide Architectural 
and Engineering Services for Fire Station #4.  The selected firm will work in tandem with the 
project Construction Manager at Risk to design Fire Station #4.  BRW Architects scored highest 
in evaluating their qualifications.     
 
Financial Consideration.  2015 Certificates of Obligation (54-01-8354).  Project budget is 
$2,668,275. 
 
Recommendation: Staff respectfully recommends that the Council award an agreement to 
BRW Architects, and authorize the City Manager to negotiate an agreement for Council 
approval.  
 
Attachments: Recommendation from the City Purchasing Agent; Evaluation Matrix.  
 
Prepared by: Bill Gardner, Fire Chief 
  Joy Simonton, City Purchasing Agent 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SOLICITATION NUMBER 
RFQ #S15-016 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 
906-10 · 906-25 · 906-30 · 925-17 · 925-33 · 925-39 

JANUARY 2015 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purchasing Division 
200 W. Willis Street 
Leander, TX 78641 
www.leandertx.gov 

 
   

 
Solicitation #S15-016 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 
ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING SERVICES 

FOR FIRE STATION #4 
  

Responses Due:  3:00 PM, February 19, 2015 
 

 

 

 1 of 9 

http://www.leandertx.gov/


SOLICITATION NUMBER 
RFQ #S15-016 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 
906-10 · 906-25 · 906-30 · 925-17 · 925-33 · 925-39 

JANUARY 2015 

 

CITY OF LEANDER 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS  
ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR FIRE STATION #4 

PART I 

GENERAL 

1. PURPOSE:  The City of Leander, herein after “City”, seeks an agreement with a qualified 
Individual, Firm, or Corporation, herein “Respondent”, to provide Professional Architectural and 
Engineering Services, herein “Services”, for the design and construction administration of Fire 
Station #4, herein “Station”.     

The new construction of the Station will be built on City-owned property at a location to be 
determined but is estimated at 2.5 acres.   

Professional services for this project include but are not limited to:  

1.1. Programming;  

1.2. Schematic Design; 

1.3. Design Development; 

1.4. FF&E, IT and Security 

1.5. Construction Documents;  

1.6. Competitive Sealed Proposal Administration; and 

1.7. Construction Administration Services; 

The City is also considering an additional fire station, Fire Station #5.  The location and 
timeline for the design and construction of this station has yet to be determined, however, 
the City may, at it’s sole discretion, award the design and construction administration of 
both new fire stations to the successful Respondent.   

2. DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  By submitting a response to this solicitation, the 
Respondent agrees that the City’s standard Definitions, Terms and Conditions, in effect at the time 
of release of the solicitation, shall govern unless specifically provided otherwise in a separate 
agreement or on the face of a purchase order.  It is the sole responsibility of Respondents to stay 
apprised of changes.  The City’s Definitions, Terms and Conditions can be obtained from the City’s 
webpage at: http://www.leandertx.gov/finance/page/purchasing. 

2.1. Any acceptance to or additional terms and conditions attached to the response will not be 
considered unless Respondent specifically references them on the front of the Solicitation 
Document.  WARNING:  Exception to or additional terms and conditions may result in 
disqualification of the response. 

3. CLARIFICATION:  For questions or clarifications of specifications, you may contact: 

Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent 
Purchasing Department 
City of Leander 
Telephone: 512-528-2730 
jsimonton@leandertx.gov 

 2 of 9 

http://www.leandertx.gov/finance/page/purchasing
mailto:jsimonton@leandertx.gov


SOLICITATION NUMBER 
RFQ #S15-016 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 
906-10 · 906-25 · 906-30 · 925-17 · 925-33 · 925-39 

JANUARY 2015 

The individual listed above may be contacted by telephone or visited for clarification of the 
specifications only.  No authority is intended or implied that specifications may be amended or 
alterations accepted prior to solicitation opening without written approval of the City of Leander 
through the Purchasing Department. 

4. RESPONDENT REQUIREMENTS:  The opening of a solicitation shall not be construed as the 
City’s acceptance of such as qualified and responsive.   

4.1. Respondents shall be firms, corporations, individuals or partnerships normally engaged in the 
design and construction of municipal fire stations. 

4.2. In order to assure the City does not encounter shipping delays, service delays or other 
unforeseen problems that can occur with out-of-area or foreign vendors, Respondent shall be 
located within the State of Texas. 

4.3. Persons and firms practicing Architectural and Engineering Services in the State of 
Texas must possess proper licensing and registration in accordance with Texas laws. 

5. COMMITTEE REVIEW AND SELECTION:  An evaluation committee will review each response to 
determine the most highly qualified Respondent on the basis of demonstrated competence and 
qualifications using the following weighted criteria.  A consensus score will be assigned to each 
response. 

Respondents may be required to make an oral presentation to the selection team to further present 
their qualifications. These presentations will provide the Respondent the opportunity to clarify their 
qualifications and ensure a mutual understanding of the services to be provided and the approach 
to be used. 

5.1. Relevant Qualifications and Experience   40 Points 

5.2. Available Resources 20 Points 

5.3. Methodology, Approach and Timeline 20 Points 

5.4. Work Samples and References  20 Points  

The evaluation process may reveal additional information for consideration.  The City reserves the 
right to modify, without notice, the evaluation structure and weighted criteria to accommodate these 
additional considerations to serve the best interest of the City. 

6. AGREEMENT TERM:  The initial term of the resulting agreement shall be determined by the 
proposed and agreed upon project timeline. 

6.1. If the Respondent fails to perform its duties in a reasonable and competent manner, the City 
shall give written notice to the Respondent of the deficiencies and the respondent shall have 
thirty (30) days to correct such deficiencies. If the Respondent fails to correct the deficiencies 
within the thirty (30) days, the City may terminate the agreement by giving the Respondent 
written notice of termination and the reason for the termination. 

6.2. If the agreement is terminated, for any reason, the respondent shall turn over all records, to 
include but not be limited to the following: drawings, plans and estimates, to the City within 
fifteen (15) working days after completion of duties contained in the agreement. 

7. AWARD:  The City reserves the right to enter into an agreement or a purchase order with a single 
award, split awards, non-award, or use any combination that best serves the interest and at the 
sole discretion of the City.  Award announcement will be made upon City Council approval of staff 
recommendation and executed agreement.  Award announcement will appear on the City’s website 
at http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps. 

8. ACCEPTANCE: Acceptance inspection should not take more than thirty (30) working days.  The 
successful Respondent will be notified within this time frame if the goods or services provided are 
not in full compliance with the specifications.  If any agreement or purchase order is canceled for 

 3 of 9 

http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps


SOLICITATION NUMBER 
RFQ #S15-016 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 
906-10 · 906-25 · 906-30 · 925-17 · 925-33 · 925-39 

JANUARY 2015 

non-acceptance, the needed good or service may be purchased elsewhere and the successful 
Respondent may be charged full increase, if any, in cost and handling. 

9. PROMPT PAYMENT POLICY:  Payments will be made in accordance with the Texas Prompt 
Payment Law, Texas Government Code, Subtitle F, Chapter 2251.  The City will pay Successful 
Respondent within thirty days after the acceptance of the supplies, materials, equipment, or the day 
on which the performance of services was completed or the day, on which the City receives a 
correct invoice for the supplies, materials, equipment or services, whichever is later.  The 
Successful Respondent may charge a late fee (fee shall not be greater than that which is permitted 
by Texas law) for payments not made in accordance with this prompt payment policy; however, this 
policy does not apply to payments made by the City in the event: 

9.1. There is a bona fide dispute between the City and Successful Respondent concerning the 
supplies, materials, services or equipment delivered or the services performed that causes 
the payment to be late; or 

9.2. The terms of a federal agreement, grant, regulation, or statute prevent the City from making a 
timely payment with Federal Funds; or 

9.3. The is a bona fide dispute between the Successful Respondent and a subcontractor or 
between a subcontractor and its suppliers concerning supplies, material, or equipment 
delivered or the services performed which caused the payment to be late; or 

9.4. The invoice is not mailed to the City in strict accordance with instructions, if any, on the 
purchase order or agreement or other such contractual agreement. 

10. NON-APPROPRIATION:  The resulting Agreement is a commitment of the City’s current revenues 
only.  It is understood and agreed the City shall have the right to terminate the Agreement at the 
end of any City fiscal year if the governing body of the City does not appropriate funds sufficient to 
purchase the estimated yearly quantities, as determined by the City’s budget for the fiscal year in 
question.  The City may affect such termination by giving successful Respondent a written notice of 
termination at the end of its then current fiscal year. 

PART II 

SCHEDULE 

1. SOLICITATION SCHEDULE:  It is the City’s intention to comply with the following solicitation 
timeline:  

1.1. Solicitation released January 29, 2015 

1.2. Deadline for questions February 11, 2015 

1.3. City responses to all questions or addendums February 13, 2015 

1.4. Responses for solicitation due by 3:00 PM February 19, 2015 

1.5. Oral Presentation (if necessary)                                                                      TBD 

Respondents may be required to make an oral presentation to the selection team to further present 
their qualifications. These presentations will provide the Respondent the opportunity to ensure a 
mutual understanding of the services to be provided and the approach to be used. 

All questions regarding the solicitation shall be submitted in writing by 5:00 PM on the due 
date noted above.  A copy of all the questions submitted and the City’s response to the questions 
shall be posted on our webpage at: http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps.  Questions shall be submitted 
to the City contact named herein. 

The City reserves the right to modify these dates.  Notice of date change will be posted to the City’s 
website. 

 4 of 9 

http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps


SOLICITATION NUMBER 
RFQ #S15-016 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 
906-10 · 906-25 · 906-30 · 925-17 · 925-33 · 925-39 

JANUARY 2015 

2. SOLICITATION UPDATES:  Respondents shall be responsible for monitoring the City’s website at: 
http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps for any updates pertaining to the solicitation described herein.  
Various updates may include addendums, cancelations, notifications, and any other pertinent 
information necessary for the submission of a correct and accurate response.  The City will not be 
held responsible for any further communication beyond updating the website. 

3. RESPONSE DUE DATE: Signed and sealed responses are due no later than 3:00 PM, on the date 
noted above to the Purchasing Department.  Mail or carry sealed responses to: 

FedEx, UPS or Hand Deliver to: 
 

City of Leander 
Purchasing Department 
200 W. Willis 
Leander, Texas 78641 

Mail to: 

City of Leander  
Purchasing Department 
PO Box 319 
Leander, TX 78646 
 

3.1. Responses received after this time and date shall not be considered. 

3.2. Sealed responses shall be clearly marked on the outside of packaging with the Solicitation 
title, number, due date and “DO NOT OPEN”. 

3.3. Facsimile or electronically transmitted responses  will not be accepted. 

3.4. Late responses will be returned to Respondent unopened if return address is provided. 

3.5. Responses cannot be altered or amended after opening.   

3.6. No response can be withdrawn after opening without written approval from the City for an 
acceptable reason. 

3.7. The City will not be bound by any oral statement or offer made contrary to the written 
specifications. 

4. AGREEMENT NEGOTIATIONS:  In establishing an agreement as a result of the solicitation 
process, the City may: 

4.1. Review all submittals and determine which Respondents are reasonable qualified for award 
of the agreement. 

4.2. Determine the Respondent whose submittal is most advantageous to the City considering the 
evaluation criteria. 

4.3. Attempt to negotiate with the most responsive, qualified Respondent an agreement at fair and 
reasonable terms, conditions and cost. 

4.4. If negotiations are successful, enter into an agreement or issue a purchase order. 

4.5. If not successful, formally end negotiations with that Respondent.  The City may then: 

4.5.1. Select the next most highly qualified Respondent and attempt to negotiate an 
agreement at fair and reasonable terms, conditions and cost with that Respondent. 

4.5.2. The City shall continue this process until an agreement is entered into or all 
negotiations are terminated. 

 5 of 9 

http://www.leandertx.gov/rfps


SOLICITATION NUMBER 
RFQ #S15-016 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 
906-10 · 906-25 · 906-30 · 925-17 · 925-33 · 925-39 

JANUARY 2015 

4.6. The City also reserves the right to reject any or all submittals, or to accept any submittal 
deemed most advantageous, or to waive any irregularities or informalities in the submittal 
received. 

5. POST AWARD MEETING:  The City and Respondent shall have a post award meeting to discuss, 
but not be limited to the following: 

5.1. Provide City contact(s) information for implementation of agreement. 

5.2. Identify specific milestones, goals and strategies to meet objectives. 

 

PART III 

SPECIFICATIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK:  Successful respondent shall provide Professional Architectural and 
Engineering Services for the design and construction administration of the Station.  

The new construction of the Station will be built on City-owned property at a location to be 
determined but is estimated at 2.5 acres.   

Professional services for this project include but are not limited to:  

1.1. Programming;  

1.2. Schematic Design; 

1.3. Design Development; 

1.4. FF&E, IT and Security; 

1.5. Construction Documents;  

1.6. Competitive Sealed Proposal Administration; and 

1.7. Construction Administration Services; 

Additional Services to City shall encompass the required schematic designs, geotechnical and 
environmental documents, all required permitting, identification of utility conflicts, required utility 
installations; coordinating with utility companies, public involvement and any other items or services 
required to successfully develop the project. 

2. ADDITIONAL STATION DESIGN:  The City is also considering an additional fire station, Fire 
Station #5.  The location and timeline for the design and construction of this station has yet to be 
determined. However, the City may, at its sole discretion, award the design and construction 
administration of both new fire stations to the successful Respondent.   

3. PLANNING MEETINGS:  Successful Respondent shall participate in a series of planning meetings 
with City staff to assess the City’s needs and determine the best design and functionality of the 
Station.   

4. PROJECT TIMELINE:  The City seeks completion of the project no later than the Fall of 2016.  
With that goal in mind, City staff has created the following schedule as a guideline to communicate 
the anticipated activities necessary to complete the project on time but the City seeks Respondent’s 
scheduling recommendations as well.  For planning purposes, the anticipated schedule for this 
project is as follows: 

4.1. Architectural Services Procurement  February 2015 

4.2. Design Phase March – July May 2015 

4.3. Competitive Sealed Proposal Phase August June – September July 2015 

 6 of 9 



SOLICITATION NUMBER 
RFQ #S15-016 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 
906-10 · 906-25 · 906-30 · 925-17 · 925-33 · 925-39 

JANUARY 2015 

4.4. Construction Phase October August 2015 – September April 2016 
    

5. TECHNICAL EXPERTISE:  The City seeks to engage a firm that has a reputation for award-
winning and innovative design and is experienced in the functionality of modern fire stations.    

6. APPROACH:  City seeks to engage a firm that provides a tried and true methodology and approach 
to designing municipal fire stations.  City seeks to utilize best practices and lessons learned from 
successful Respondent’s past projects. 

7. ADDITIONAL SPECIFICATIONS AND TECNHICAL INTEGRATION:  The City is currently in the 
process of acquiring the property for the Station that is anticipated to be 2.5 acres.  Additionally, the 
City anticipates: 

7.1.  A 2 or 3 bay design with air motion movement; 

7.2. 7,000 – 7,800 square feet of space; 

7.3. Station alerting; 

7.4. Energy efficiencies. 

 
 
 
 

PART IV 

RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS 

1. SOLICITATION SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS: To achieve a uniform review process and obtain 
the maximum degree of comparability, the responses shall be organized in the manner specified 
below.  Responses shall not exceed twenty (20) pages in length (excluding title pages(s) and 
index/table of contents, attachments or dividers).  Information in excess of those pages allowed will 
not be evaluated.  One page shall be interpreted as one side of a double-spaced, printed, 8 1/2” X 
11” sheet of paper.  It is recommended that responses not be submitted in ringed binders or metal 
spirals to conserve cost for both the Respondent and the City. 

The Respondent shall submit one (1) original signed paper copy and four (4) copies, clearly 
identified as a “COPY” of its Response. 

In addition, the Respondent shall submit one (1) CD, each containing a complete copy of 
Respondent’s submission in an acceptable electronic format (PDF, RTF, TXT, DOC, XLS).  A 
complete copy of the Response includes all documents required by this Solicitation.  The CD shall 
be titled: “SOLICITATION NUMBER - Complete copy of [Name of Respondent]’s submission.”  
Failure to provide a CD may result in disqualification for award. 

If supplemental materials are included with the Response, each CD must include such 
supplemental materials.  The Response and accompanying documentation are the property of the 
City and will not be returned. 

1.1. Title Page (1 page) – Show the solicitation title and number, the name of firm, address, 
telephone number(s) name of contact person and date. 

1.2. Letter of Transmittal (1 page) – Identify the services for which solicitation has been prepared.   

1.2.1. Briefly state your firm’s understanding for the services to be performed and make a 
positive commitment to provide the services as specified. 

1.2.2. Provide the name(s) of the person(s) authorized to make representations for your 
firm, their titles, address, telephone numbers and e-mail address. 

TAB #1 

 7 of 9 



SOLICITATION NUMBER 
RFQ #S15-016 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 
906-10 · 906-25 · 906-30 · 925-17 · 925-33 · 925-39 

JANUARY 2015 

1.2.3. The letter shall be signed by a corporate officer or other individual who has the 
authority to bind the firm.  The name and title of the individuals(s) signing the 
solicitation shall be clearly shown immediately below the signature. 

1.3. Table of Contents (1 page) – Clearly identify the materials by Tab and Page Number. 

1.4. Previous Performance/Experience – Provide detailed information on firm and team 
experience with providing Services as described in the Scope of Work. 

1.4.1. Respondent shall identify key project staff, task leaders and sub-consultants along 
with their respective field and expected services to the City for the Scope of Work on 
behalf of the firm. Information shall include education and professional registrations.  
Resumes shall be included for each of the individuals and sub-consultants 
referenced which demonstrate their qualifications to satisfy all the critical and service 
requirement areas. The City reserves the right to approve or disapprove all sub-
consultants prior to any work being performed.  RESUMES SHALL NOT COUNT 
TOWARD THE 20-PAGE CONTENT LIMIT. 

1.4.2. Respondent shall provide a representative list of similar completed projects in the 
past 3-4 years with a scale and complexity similar to the project being considered by 
the City. The list shall include the location, client, services provided by your firm, term 
of services and an owner contact name, telephone and e-mail address. Include a 
brief overview of each project with, at a minimum, a short description of the services 
provided and methodology used for projects. 

1.4.3. Proof of licensure shall be required with submittal.  Persons and firms 
practicing Architectural Services in the State of Texas must possess proper 
licensing and registration in accordance with Texas laws. 

1.5. Available Resources and Consultant Location – Provide information on size, resources and 
business history of the firm. 

1.6. Methodology – Respondent shall define the method and approach to be used. 

1.7. Timeline – Respondent shall provide a timeline to complete the project as per the Scope of 
Work contained herein. 

1.8. Work Samples – Respondent shall provide work samples of designs successfully completed 
for similar spaces.  Work samples can include but are not limited to drawings, renderings and 
photography. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB #4 

TAB #3 

TAB #2 

TAB #5 

TAB #7 

TAB #6 

 8 of 9 



SOLICITATION NUMBER 
RFQ #S15-016 

SPECIFICATION NUMBER 
906-10 · 906-25 · 906-30 · 925-17 · 925-33 · 925-39 

JANUARY 2015 

PART V 

CONFIDENTIALITY OF CONTENT 

All documents submitted in response to a solicitation shall be subject to the Texas Public Information Act.  
Following an award, responses are subject to release as public information unless the response or 
specific parts of the response can be shown to be exempt from the Texas Public Information Act.  Pricing 
is not considered to be confidential under any circumstances. 

Information in a submittal that is legally protected as a trade secret or otherwise confidential must be 
clearly indicated with stamped, bold red letters stating "CONFIDENTIAL" on that section of the document.  
The City will not be responsible for any public disclosure of confidential information if it is not clearly 
marked as such. 

 
If a request is made under the Texas Public Information Act to inspect information designated as 
confidential, the Respondent shall, upon request from the City, furnish sufficient written reasons and 
information as to why the information should be protected from disclosure.  The matter will then be 
presented to the Attorney General of Texas for final determination. 

 

 9 of 9 



Bid Info: City of Leander 

Architectural and Engineering Services for Fire Station #4

Solicitation No. #S15-016

Opening: 4/2/2015

Max 
Points

McCall and Associates 
AIA Architects RPGA Design Group KAH Architects Pro Forma Architecture Moman Architecture Parkhill Smith & Cooper Johnson & Pace BRW Architects Randall Scott Architects PGAL 

40 30 30 25 25 35 25 25 38 35 30

Two architects, plus support 
team, acceptable licensure, 

some Central Texas Fire 
Stations of similar scope and 

size.                                               
Sub qualifications acceptable.

Two architects, acceptable 
licensure, some Fire Station 
Design in Dallas metro plex 

areaof similar scope and size, 
limited Central Texas 

experience.                                   
Sub qualifications acceptable.

One architect, plus support 
team, acceptable licensure, 

some Central Texas Fire 
Stations of similar scope and 

size.                        Sub 
qualifications acceptable.

Two architects, acceptable 
licensure, mention 40 fire 

stations but limited fire station 
detail provided.   

Two architects, plus support 
team, acceptable licensure, 

some Central Texas Fire 
Stations of similar scope and 

size.                                              
Sub qualifications acceptable.                           
Designed City of Leander Fire 
Station Admin. building; some 

issues with design.                                                      

Two architects, plus support 
team, acceptable licensure, 
limited Central Texas Fire 

Stations of similar scope and 
size.                                                            

Sub qualifications acceptable.

Two architects on team, 
acceptable licensure, some 

Texas Fire Stations of similar 
scope and size, limited regional 

stations.                                             
Sub qualifications acceptable.

Two architects, acceptable 
licensure, exctensive experience 

throughout Central Texas of 
similar scope and size.  

Designed City of Leander 
Crystal Falls Fire Station.                                                            

Sub qualifications acceptable. 

Three architects, acceptable 
licensure, Fire Station Design in 
Dallas metro plex areaof similar 
scope and size, limited Central 

Texas experience.                                   
Sub qualifications acceptable.

Four architects, acceptable 
licensure, out of state Fire 

Building design experience of 
similar scope and size, some 
Southern Texas experience.                                                  

Sub qualifications acceptable.

20 15 15 15 15 15 20 20 20 18 20
39 years, limited detail on total 

staff 1989, 16 staff 1983, 8 staff 1999, 4 staff 2000, 2 staff plus support staff 1945, 300 staff 1995, 75 staff 1984, 66 staff 1987, 20 staff 1946, 200 staff

20 15 20 15 18 12 10 10 20 20 10

Acceptable methodology, July 
2016

Exceptional and detailed 
methodology, April 2016

Acceptable methodology, April 
2016

Exceptional and detailed 
methodology, May 2016

Acceptable methodology, 14 
Months, ETA delivery of June 

2016

Adequate but limited detail, no 
commitment on timeline for 

delivery

Adequate but limited detail, April 
2016

Exceptional and detailed 
methodology, April 2016

Exceptional and detailed 
methodology, April 2016

Adequate but limited detail, July 
2016

20 19 17 19 16 14 17 7 14 17 15

Photos and descriptions, 
extensive drawings, work 

product acceptable.                                                           
See refence score sheets.

Photos and descriptions, some 
drawings, work product 

acceptable.                                              
See refence score sheets.

Photos and descriptions, 
extensive drawings, work 

product acceptable.                                           
See refence score sheets.

Photos and descriptions, some 
drawings, work product 

acceptable.                                               
See refence score sheets.

Photos and descriptions, no 
drawings, work product 

acceptable.                                                 
See refence score sheets.

Photos and descriptions, some 
drawings, work product 

acceptable.                                                          
See refence score sheets.

Photos and descriptions, metal 
Stations different in scope, no 

drawings.                                                       
No references checks 

returned.

Photos and descriptions, no 
drawings, work product 

acceptable.                                                
See refence score sheets.

Photos and descriptions, some 
drawings, work product 

acceptable.                                             
See refence score sheets.

Photos and descriptions, no 
drawings, work product 

acceptable.                                                          
See refence score sheets.

TOTAL: 100 79 82 74 74 76 72 62 92 90 75

AWARD

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Qualifications and Experience

Available Resources

Methodology, Approach and Timeline

Respondent qualifications meet City's needs; work experience on similar 
projects; certification(s) and licensure in place; 

Size, resources and business history of firm

Methodology, approach to project and timeline to complete

Work samples shown and reference check scores                                                                
(5 for reference, and 15 for work product)

Work Samples and References



 

 

  

INTEROFFICE MEMO 

 

DATE: April 22, 2015 

TO: Chief Bill Gardner 

FROM: Joy Simonton 

RE: Recommendation for Award for Solicitation #S15-016 

 Architectural and Engineering Services for Fire Station #4 

 

The Purchasing Division recommends BRW Architects for the award of an agreement in accordance with 
the Best Value Evaluation Process for the above mentioned solicitation.   

Ten (10) responses were received.  Seven (7) HUBS were notified of the solicitation.   

 

Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent 

 

 

CC: FILE 



AGENDA ITEM # 20 

   
Executive Summary 

 
May 7, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consider Selecting American Constructors as the Offeror Whose Proposal Offers the 
Best Value for the Construction Manager at Risk Services for the Fire Station #4 Project and 
Authorize the City Manager to Negotiate a Construction Manager at Risk Agreement for Council 
Approval  
 
Background: Two vendors submitted RFP responses on April 9, 2015 to provide Construction 
Manager at Risk Services (CMR) for Fire Station #4.  The CMR will work in tandem with the 
project architect to estimate and build Fire Station #4.  American Constructors submitted the 
proposal that offers the best value for the City.  Under the construction manager at risk delivery 
method, the next step is for the City Council to consider selecting American Constructors’s 
proposal as offering the best value to the City.  The City Manager will then attempt to negotiate 
a contract with American Constructors.  If negotiations are successful, a construction contract 
will be presented to the City Council for approval.  If the negotiations are unsuccessful, the City 
will discontinue negotiations with American Constructors and proceed to negotiate with the next 
offeror.   
 
Financial Consideration.  2015 Certificates of Obligation (54-01-8354).  Project budget is 
$2,668,275. 
 
Recommendation: Staff respectfully recommends that the Council select American 
Constructors as the offeror whose proposal offers the best value for the Construction Manager 
at Risk Services for the Fire Station #4 Project and authorize the City Manager to negotiate a 
construction manager-at-risk agreement with American Constructors for Council approval.  .  
 
Attachments: Recommendation from the City Purchasing Agent; Bid Tabulation.  
 
Prepared by: Bill Gardner, Fire Chief 
  Joy Simonton, City Purchasing Agent 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Bid Info: City of Leander 

Architectural and Engineering Services for Fire Station #4

Solicitation No. #S15-016

Opening: 4/2/2015

Max 
Points

Chasco Constructors American Constructors

20 16 20
$8,500.00 $9,000.00

$99,000.00 $63,800.00
$25,300.00 $26,400.00

$132,800.00 $99,200.00
$22,832.00 $23,900.00

9 7

$205,488.00 $167,300.00

$338,288.00 $266,500.00

30 25 28

Acceptable qualifications, staff 
resources and experience.                        

Founded 1979.  34 Professional 
staff; 325 field employees.  Some 

fire station experience. 

Acceptable qualifications, staff 
resources and experience.                        

Founded 1982.  53 Professional 
staff; 43 field employees.  Some fire 

station experience. More self-
performed services highlighted.

Adequate close-out checklist. Superior close-out checklist.

Adequate warranty program.  One 
point of contact for warranty issues.

Adequate warranty program.  Active 
inspections performed after move-in 

of building for warranty issues.

Exceptional industry recognition. Exceptional industry recognition.

One issue resolved in mediation. None.

Acceptable. Acceptable.

20 18 20

Acceptable and detailed 
methodology.                                            

Nine month construction timeline.

Acceptable and detailed 
methodology that provides monthly 
budget status and detail on large 

bay projects.                              
Seven month construction timeline.

10 10 8

Acceptable.  Acceptable but received                               
Qualified Oppinion.

20 15 16
Photos and project detail provided, 
projects shown are acceptable and 

of like fire station type.                                                   
Work samples provided budget 

detail.  See reference sheet(s) for 
reference scoring, change orders 

mentioned on both.

Photos and project detail provided, 
projects shown are acceptable and 
one is of like fire station type.  Work 

samples did not provide budget 
detail.  See reference sheet(s) for 
scoring; change orders mentioned 

on one.  

TOTAL: 100 83 92

AWARD 

Litigation

Payment and Performance Bond Surety

GENERAL CONDITIONS TOTAL PROJECT EXPENSE

Project Close-Out Checklist

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Proposed Fee (Calculated Using $2.2 Million Project Construction Estimate)

Warranty Program

Industry Awards

Proposed approach and timeline

Respondent's financial capability

Part A:  Pre-Construction Fee

Cost estimating method, reporting, and delivery timeline

Respondent's financial viability to run and complete project

Work samples shown and reference check scores                                                                
(15 for reference, and 5 for work product)

Work samples and references 

Project team experience and qualifications

Respondent qualifications meet City's needs; work experience on similar projects; 
certification(s) and licensure in place; 

Part B:  Construction Management Fee

Part C:  Performance and Payment Bond Fee

Part D:  General Conditions Monthly Expense

Estimated Months to Completion

ONE TIME FEE

TOTAL ESTIMATED  FEE



 

 

  

INTEROFFICE MEMO 

 

DATE: April 20, 2015 

TO: Chief Bill Gardner 

FROM: Joy Simonton 

RE: Recommendation for Award for Solicitation #S15-017 

 Construction Manager at Risk for Fire Station #4 

 

The Purchasing Division recommends American Constructors for the award of an agreement in 
accordance with the Best Value Evaluation Process for the above mentioned solicitation.   

Two (2) responses were received.  Nine (9) HUBS were notified of the solicitation.   

 

Joy Simonton, Purchasing Agent 

 

 

CC: FILE 



AGENDA ITEM # 21 

 
Executive Summary 

February 19, 2009 

 

Agenda Subject:    Establish Wage Scale for Fire Station # 4 

 
Background:  Texas Laws requires that a wage scale be established for Construction 

Manager at Risk Projects.  The law allows the rate to be determined by an independent 

study done by the entity establishing the contract or by of using a study completed by a 

state regulatory authority.  The City recommends using the attached list of wages for 

construction related jobs determined by the Texas Workforce Commission for the Austin-

Round Rock San Marcos Area. 

 

Origination:   Bill Gardner, Fire Chief 

 
Recommendation:     Staff recommends Council approval the list attached. 

 
Attachments:    Wage Rate list 

 
Prepared by:  Bill Gardner    



PROPOSED MINIMUM WAGE SCALE

CITY OF LEANDER
1/22/15

Entry

Occ Code Occupation Wage / hr

472021 Brickmasons and Blockmasons 14.96$     

472031 Carpenters 12.45$     

472041 Carpet Installers 9.35$       

472044 Tile and Marble Setters 9.58$       

472051 Cement Masons and Concrete Finishers 11.67$     

472061 Construction Laborers 9.49$       

472071 Paving, Surfacing, & Tamping Equipment Operators 11.51$     

472073 Operating Engineers and Other Construction Equipment 12.54$     

472081 Drywall and Ceiling Tile Installers 12.34$     

472111 Electricians 16.49$     

472121 Glaziers 15.23$     

472131 Insulation Workers, Floor, Ceiling, and Wall 11.94$     

472132 Insulation Workers Mechanical 13.06$     

472141 Painters, Construction and Maintenance 10.36$     

472151 Pipelayers 12.40$     

472152 Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters 14.64$     

472171 Reinforcing Iron and Rebar Workers 11.56$     

472181 Roofers 11.52$     

472211 Sheet Metal Workers 13.28$     

473011 Helpers‐‐Brickmasons, Blockmasons, Stonemasons, and Tile and Marble Setters 10.51$     

473012 Helpers‐‐Carpenters 11.82$     

473013 Helpers‐‐Electricians 10.04$     

473014 Helpers‐‐Painters, Paperhangers, Plasterers, and Stucco Masons 9.14$       

473015 Helpers‐‐Pipelayers, Plumbers, Pipefitters, and Steamfitters 9.07$       

473019 Helpers Construction Trades ‐ All Other 11.34$     

474041 Hazardous Materials Removal Workers 13.04$     

474099 Construction and Related Workers, All Other 12.38$     

492098 Security and Fire Alarm Installers 14.39$     

499021 Heating, Air Conditioning, and Refrigeration Mechanics and Installers 12.78$     

Data Source:  Texas Workforce Commission Wage Survey

Austin‐Round Rock‐San Marcos Metropolitan Statistical Area

http://www.tracer2.com/cgi/dataAnalysis/AreaSelection.asp?tableName=Oeswage



Step 1:   Go to www.tracer2.com  

 

 

 

Step 2 – Click “Data Link” 

 

http://www.tracer2.com/


Step 3:  Click “Wages by Profession” 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Step 4:  Select Area: “MSA 2000 defined”  then “Austin-Roundrock-San Marcos, TX Metropolitan 
Statistical Area” then click “Continue” 

 

 

Step 5: Click “Continue”.    

 

 



Step 6:  Scroll down and click “470000 Construction and Extraction Occupations” then click box for 
“Select consecutive 100/clear all” then click “Continue” 

 

Step 7: Select “Continue”  

 



Step 8: Select “Hourly Wage” and “Entry Wages” then click “View Data” 

 

 

Step 9: Click “Accept Terms” 

 

The data list will appear and the wage information for the desired job occupations can be obtained from 
the list produced.  It can be downloaded into excel if needed. 


	Agenda
	Item # 5
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 20
	Item # 21



